The First 125 Years of
Stairville United Methodist Church

	Methodist gatherings began in Dorrance Township during the late 1760's under the leadership of Messrs. Moyster and Owens. At that time the area was mostly wilderness and the townships of Dorrance, Hollenback, Slocum, Conyngham and Nescopek made up the old Hanover Circuit. Some of the early members were John Arnold, George Stair and his wife Elizabeth (Mr. Stair died in 1849 and his wife died in 1854), John Hawk and his wife, Stephen Lee and his wife and George Moon and his wife. During the early days of Methodism under the leadership of Moyster and Owens, services were held in log houses, barns and outside in groves, weather permitting, until the construction of the schoolhouse in the northeast corner of the township. Finally, in 1873 when a Rev. Josiah Wagner was in charge, a log cabin style church was built about a half mile from the present structure.
	Charles Stair had come from the original Plymouth Group and was one organızer of the Stairville Methodist Episcopal Church. Those also remembered in the group were Mathias Engler, Matt Stair, and John Myers. The first building was constructed at a cost of about $1800.
	Some of the pastors who served after Mr. Wagner during these early years included Rev. J. T. Barall, Rev. Wilson, Rev. Trieble, Rev. William Ruggles, Rev. William Edgar, and Rev. J. A. Transuer (1880).
These men were from the Susquehana Conference and from the original Plymouth-Ashley Circuit which was also started by the Rev. E. Owens.
	By 1895, this group of Methodist was growing and there was need of a larger House of Worship. The old building was torn down and any usable material was hauled by horse and wagon to a new site. Although the original building was located on property not owned by the organized church, that was not to be the case any longer. John Myers felt led to donate land for the new building and in a short time a new church was built at an estimated cost of $2000.
	Although the year for the first Sunday School class is no longer known, the first Sunday School Superintendent was Stephen Lee. The first superintendent of the new church building was Lyman Engler. The Stairville Methodist Episcopal Church was in the Sunbury Conference as part of the Wapwallopen Charge along with churches in Slocum and Wapwallopen. The parsonage was located in Wapwallopen and the minister would travel by horse and buggy and preach three Sunday services returning home before dark. His meals typically were provided in the home of one of the kind church families. Weather permitting, he returned once a week for prayer and praise, Bible studies and also for visitations.
	Candles were the first means of lighting used in the Stairville Methodist Episcopal church. However, because of the challenges of heat, transportation, etc. seldom were there any after dark activities. It wasn't long until kerosene lamps were installed, and about 1920 a gas light system was installed by Mr. Ridgeway and Mr. Brown for a company in Scranton, PA. In the early 1930's electricity was the big project. Mr. Benjamin Turner of the Alden Methodist Episcopal Church did the job as a donation to the church. Mr. Turner was the husband of Martha Stair, a granddaughter of the founder.
	The first heat was provided by two small wood stoves. About 1900 they were replaced by a large pot-bellied stove that was placed near the center of the sanctuary. The system was upgrade about 1925 to a coal furnace located in the basement. The coal furnace has now been replaced by the oil heat.
	The sanctuary has been remodeled twice. The first time was to install a high arched ceiling. The entire inside finish was made of white pine ceiling boards with wainscoting of wider boards. There was a small platform which held the pulpit and two chairs. After some time, the structure began to spread apart; it was drawn together with huge iron turnbuckles. The ceiling was then lowered in the strengthening process. The large platform as it is now was also added along with a new floor. In 1959 a project to provide new furnishings for the Sanctuary was undertaken. This was financed by church families who donated money as memorials. Alvin Stair (4th generation of the founder) and son-in-law Leo Luchi built the furnishings you see today with the exception of the pulpit chairs which are the original chairs. In the 1970's the ceiling was again lowered and the present lighting installed. The paneling work also was done. In 1973 the wall to wall carpeting was installed.
	The basement has also seen improvements at various times. In 1976 the paneling, insulation and new windows were installed. This was all done by volunteer work and paid for with donations by members.
	In addition to the changes our church building has seen over the years, we have also been a church which has become accustomed to many changes initiated by the Conference. As can be seen in the list of pastors, over the years we have been part of several different charges. 
	In 1997 the Faith and Stairville churches officially voted to merge into one church. This union was in the works for many years as can be seen by the fact that the name New Hope United Methodist Church was chosen from many suggestions and announced at the united church picnic in August of 1988. The Slocum United Methodist Church, which was the third member of this 3-point charge, decided not to join us in this merger. During the planning stage, each church continued to hold its own worship services but combined all other activities. Finally, it was agreed that property should be purchased and plans for a new building begun. These plans, however, never came to fruition and we agreed to again become a charge. It was agreed by Conference to be accepted as The New Hope Charge as we never ceased to Hope for New Miracles.
	Not long ago, it became obvious that Stairville needed more space. Plans for a new annex were immediately undertaken. After a few years of church folks and friends volunteering long hours of labor and donations of materials and monies, the project is near completion. The ladies are extremely proud of their new kitchen, and rightfully so. This entire facility consists of donated items and was installed using donated labor. Various other donations of tables, chairs, etc. have also helped fill our empty dining area. Our former sister church of Glen Lyon was in the process of closing at the time and thanks to their Christian generosity we received Sanctuary, kitchen and dining area items too numerous to mention. Also, concerned members donated a nearly new piano. Our old basement is still put to good use. With floors covered by donated carpet the meeting rooms are used for Sunday School, Scouts and small affairs.
